
November 16, 2012  Summary Judgment Hearing

                                                                        1

             1       IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF THE S TATE OF WASHINGTON

             2                 IN AND FOR THE COUNT Y OF KING

             3

             4

             5  ______________________________
                                              )
             6  LANE POWELL PC, an Oregon     ) Cau se No. 11-2-34596-3-SEA
                Professional corporation,     ) 
             7                                )
                             Plaintiff,       )
             8                                )
                       vs.                    )
             9                                )
                MARK DeCOURSEY and CAROL      )
            10  DeCOURSEY, individually and   )
                the marital community         )
            11  composed thereof,             )
                                              )
            12               Defendants.      )
                ______________________________)
            13

            14
                                 TRANSCRIPT OF PROC EEDINGS
            15
                Before the HONORABLE RICHARD EADIE,  Presiding, on Friday, 
            16  November 16, 2012.

            17                 MOTION FOR SUMMARY J UDGEMENT

            18  APPEARANCES:

            19
                For the Plaintiff:            ROBER T SULKIN
            20                                HALEY  MONTGOMERY

            21
                For the Defendants:            PRO SE
            22

            23  REPORTED BY:

            24  RHONDA K. SALVESEN, RPR, CSR, RMR
                STATE OF WASHINGTON
            25

Page 1 of  72



November 16, 2012  Summary Judgment Hearing

                                                                        2

             1                 THE COURT:  Folks, c ome on in and be seated.  

             2  I think this is the first time we'v e been in this courtroom 

             3  together.

             4                 MRS. DeCOURSEY:  Yes .  How do you do, sir?  

             5  I'm pleased to meet you.  I wish th e circumstances were 

             6  otherwise.

             7                 THE COURT:  All righ t. 

             8                 MRS. DeCOURSEY:  But  it's nice to meet you.

             9                 THE COURT:  Thank yo u.  

            10                 MRS. DeCOURSEY:  Thi s is my husband, Mark.

            11                 THE COURT:  Okay.  F irst off, the issue of 

            12  recording.  I'm going to address th e issue of recording 

            13  this.  And I will tell you right at  the beginning you may 

            14  not have a court reporter transcrib e this hearing but you 

            15  may audio record it.  You have an a udio recorder with you?

            16                 MRS. DeCOURSEY:  (No dded head up and down.)

            17                 THE COURT:  Okay.  I f you want to set the 

            18  audio recorder up here you're welco me to do that.  

            19                 I looked back on the  May 29th letter from 

            20  Assistant Presiding Judge Palmer Ro binson which says you 

            21  may audio record it.  So you are al l set up already and 

            22  running?  

            23                 MRS. DeCOURSEY:  (No dded head up and down.)

            24                 THE COURT:  All righ t, then.  We're okay 

            25  and we're ready to then proceed wit h this matter.
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             1                 MR. SULKIN:  May I b egin, Your Honor?

             2                 THE COURT:  Yes.  An d I think we ought to 

             3  begin -- I know you had in your min d but with the 

             4  continuance request.  

             5                 MR. SULKIN:  Thank y ou, Your Honor.  

             6                 THE COURT REPORTER:  Counsel, could you put 

             7  your name on the record for me, ple ase?  

             8                 MR. SULKIN:  Absolut ely.

             9                 THE COURT REPORTER:  Thank you.

            10                 MR. SULKIN:  My name  is -- 

            11                 MR. DeCOURSEY:  The continuance request was 

            12  our motion.

            13                 THE COURT:  Oh, you' re right.  It's your

            14  motion so that's what we ought to b egin with.  

            15                 MR. SULKIN:  Okay.

            16                 THE COURT:  Thank yo u.  Do you want to come 

            17  up here and argue?  Do you want to argue from there or?  

            18  There's no reason why you can't sta y up here.  We should 

            19  take this fairly directly.

            20                 Actually the -- Mr. DeCoursey, who's your 

            21  friend?  

            22                 MR. DeCOURSEY:  This  is my ADA advocate. 

            23  This is Eric.

            24                 THE COURT:  Fair eno ugh.

            25                 MR. DeCOURSEY:  We m ove for a continuance on 
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             1  the basis of Lane Powell's discover y violations and a 56(f) 

             2  motion -- 

             3                 THE COURT:  All righ t.

             4                 MR. DeCOURSEY:  -- t hat we were unable to 

             5  prepare all the evidence we needed to face a discovery -- 

             6  or to face a summary judgment.  

             7                 The motion for conti nuance was unopposed.  

             8  The last day that Lane Powell could  file a opposition to 

             9  our motion was Thursday, the -- Nov ember the 8th; that is 

            10  because the motion was dated for Tu esday, the 13th.  And 

            11  Monday was a court holiday, so they  are required under 

            12  LCR 7 to -- any opposition is due t wo court days prior to 

            13  the date of hearing the motion.

            14                 Since it's unopposed , I believe the Court 

            15  should take it that Lane Powell has  consented to the motion 

            16  -- has stipulated to the motion. 

            17                 THE COURT:  Okay. 

            18                 MR. DeCOURSEY:  And all these facts and 

            19  arguments and more are in the writt en motion itself.

            20                 THE COURT:  Okay.

            21                 MR. DeCOURSEY:  And in the reply that we 

            22  filed.

            23                 THE COURT:  Okay.  

            24                 MR. DeCOURSEY:  Yes,  sir?  

            25                 THE COURT:  You did file a reply to that, 
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             1  didn't you?

             2                 MR. DeCOURSEY:  We d id file a reply.  We -- 

             3  but, of course, the reply was not w ithin the deadlines 

             4  provided in LCR 7 because noon of t he day before the court 

             5  hearing was Friday, and that was wh en Lane Powell filed its 

             6  untimely opposition, which would in  all equity not provide 

             7  us an opportunity to file our reply  by noon on Friday.

             8                 THE COURT:  Of cours e.  So it was filed 

             9  later.  And I was out of the state until the 14th in any 

            10  event, so.

            11                 MRS. DeCOURSEY:  Oka y.

            12                 THE COURT:  Okay.

            13                 THE COURT REPORTER:  Excuse me, Your Honor.  

            14  Could he just put his name on the r ecord just formally if 

            15  he doesn't mind?  

            16                 MR. DeCOURSEY:  Oh, yes.  My name is Mark 

            17  DeCoursey.

            18                 THE COURT REPORTER:  Thank you.

            19                 MR. DeCOURSEY:  And I'm a defendant in this 

            20  matter.

            21                 THE COURT REPORTER:  Thank you, Your Honor.

            22                 THE COURT:  Counsel?

            23                 MR. SULKIN:  Your Ho nor, the motion wasn't 

            24  unopposed.  The motion was -- we re sponded on Friday the 

            25  9th.
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             1                 THE COURT:  Okay.  N ow, I've got to ask you 

             2  to keep your voice up a little bit.

             3                 MR. SULKIN:  Fair en ough.

             4                 THE COURT:  And so t hat the DeCourseys can 

             5  hear.

             6                 MR. SULKIN:  Fair en ough, Your Honor.

             7                 For the record, Bob Sulkin representing Lane 

             8  Powell.

             9                 Your Honor, we did f ile a motion in response 

            10  on Friday, a brief in response.  An d, look, this is just -- 

            11  this has to be seen for what it is.   It's just yet another 

            12  attempt by the DeCourseys to delay us getting paid.

            13                 THE COURT:  Okay.

            14                 MR. SULKIN:  And let  me just -- 

            15                 THE COURT:  Let me a sk you a question, 

            16  please.

            17                 MR. SULKIN:  Sure.

            18                 THE COURT:  I'm goin g to ask you to -- 

            19                 MR. SULKIN:  Fair en ough.

            20                 THE COURT:  -- let m e do that.

            21                 So you're -- do you agree that it was due on 

            22  Thursday, November 8th?

            23                 MR. SULKIN:  No.

            24                 THE COURT:  When was  it due?  

            25                 MR. SULKIN:  It was due on Friday.
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             1                 THE COURT:  It was d ue on Friday?

             2                 MR. SULKIN:  Right.

             3                 THE COURT:  And you filed it on Friday? 

             4                 MR. SULKIN:  Yes.

             5                 THE COURT:  Okay.  U nder LCR 7?

             6                 MR. SULKIN:  Yes.

             7                 THE COURT:  Okay, fa ir enough.  Go ahead.

             8                 MR. SULKIN:  This is  just another effort by 

             9  them to delay.  And let me give you  the context of this.

            10                 THE COURT:  Okay.

            11                 MR. SULKIN:  If you have a question I'm 

            12  happy to answer it.

            13                 THE COURT:  I do.

            14                 MR. SULKIN:  Oh, sur e.

            15                 THE COURT:  Under th e requirements, did 

            16  they meet the requirements for a co ntinuance of this 

            17  hearing under 56(f)?

            18                 MR. SULKIN:  No.

            19                 THE COURT:  Okay.  T ell me why not.  

            20                 MR SULKIN:  Two reas ons, Your Honor.

            21                 THE COURT:  Okay.

            22                 MR. SULKIN:  First -  they basically give you 

            23  two reasons.  First, they just hire d a new lawyer.  That's 

            24  reason number one.  That was the de claration of Lish 

            25  Whitson saying I may join.  
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             1                 THE COURT:  Okay, bu t they did not hire 

             2  Mr. Whitson.

             3                 MR. SULKIN:  And the y didn't hire mister --

             4                 THE COURT:  As far a s I know.

             5                 MR. SULKIN:  So he's  not even hired.  

             6  They've had three previous lawyers in this case.

             7                 THE COURT:  Okay.

             8                 MR. SULKIN:  So the idea that they 

             9  couldn't -- they didn't have enough  time to hire a lawyer 

            10  when this case was filed way back w hen is absurd quite 

            11  frankly.  They've had plenty of tim e.  This isn't a 

            12  situation where, you know, we move quickly for summary 

            13  judgement, they need time, their la wyer got sick, we

            14  need -- look, I accommodate all tha t, okay.  But here 

            15  they've had three different lawyers  and they've been using 

            16  them strategically not to represent  them in this case.  

            17  That's number one.

            18                 Number two, the docu ments they claim they 

            19  want are completely irrelevant to e very -- any issue in 

            20  this case for a couple of reasons.  One, they were fully 

            21  available to them months and months  ago.  They don't -- 

            22  they never wanted them because of t his claim of privilege 

            23  they assert and then don't assert a nd then they assert 

            24  again.  

            25                 Second -- if I may m ake continue?  
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             1                 THE COURT:  Yes.

             2                 MR. SULKIN:  You str uck all of their

             3  defense -- all the counterclaims an d affirmative defenses 

             4  and they have no other.  You've alr eady done that.  There 

             5  is no other defense they have.  

             6                 Second, they don't t ake the -- the documents 

             7  have no relevance to the issue of r easonableness of the 

             8  fees.  Court's already found the fe es to be reasonable.  So 

             9  all of these issues is just another  in a series of delay 

            10  tactics by the DeCourseys.  

            11                 And I should say, Yo ur Honor, I understand 

            12  the Court's concern about making su re there's a fair 

            13  hearing here.  I believe you've gon e well beyond what's 

            14  fair and reasonable in this case to  a point where justice 

            15  is being denied my client.  We've b een waiting four years 

            16  to be paid, okay.  I mean, let's pu t this in perspective, 

            17  four years, and enough is enough al ready.  They've had 

            18  their chance to respond.  They don' t have a defense.  

            19  You've struck them all.  We need to  proceed, get the case 

            20  over with.  They've got an appeal, let's go forward.

            21                 I'm happy to answer any questions you have, 

            22  Your Honor.

            23                 THE COURT:  Any resp onse, Mr. DeCoursey?

            24                 MR. DeCOURSEY:  Yes.

            25                 MRS. DeCOURSEY:  Yes , I have a response.  
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             1                 Mr. Sulkin is quite misleading.  He says 

             2  we've had a number of lawyers.  Tha t's not quite true. 

             3  We -- after Lane Powell filed it's lien, judge, we went to 

             4  Mr. Paul Fogarty to see if we can n egotiate with Lane 

             5  Powell.  

             6                 And Mr. Fogarty wrot e Lane Powell a 19-page 

             7  letter asking that negotiation take  place and that type of 

             8  thing.  Lane Powell wrote back on S eptember -- that letter 

             9  from Mr. Fogarty was dated Septembe r 22.  On September 28th 

            10  Lane Powell wrote back indicating w ell, okay, maybe there's 

            11  some things we can talk about.  Nex t thing we knew there 

            12  was a summons delivered to our hous e on October the 5th.  

            13                 On October the 6th, this gentleman here, 

            14  Mr. Sulkin, called Mr. Fogarty and said that Lane Powell 

            15  would spend $800,000 in legal fees or was willing to spend 

            16  $800,000 in legal fees in order to recoup $300,000.  Quite 

            17  clearly, Mr. Sulkin was threatening  to wipe out our entire 

            18  Windermere award in violation of CR  1 and CR 11.  

            19                 It was basically -- well, sir, forgive me.  

            20  I come from Brooklyn, New York, and  if someone made that 

            21  threat on the street we just call t huggery.  So we could 

            22  not afford to hire Mr. Fogarty for that amount.  Okay, 

            23  let's see what else we have.  

            24                 We have -- one gentl eman helped us in 

            25  limited representation going to Mr.  Sulkin's office to have 
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             1  a look at boxes of materials.  And Mr. Lish Whitson could 

             2  not represent us because we didn't have enough time. 

             3                 We can't get a conti ngency lawyer because 

             4  they cannot bear up to Mr. Sulkin's  threat to wipe them out 

             5  for $800,000.  Basically this gentl eman has denied us legal 

             6  representation.  That's the effecti ve message.

             7                 THE COURT:  Okay.

             8                 MRS. DeCOURSEY:  And  we have presented 

             9  this -- this e-mail that Mr. Fogart y sent to us confirming 

            10  the content of that conversation an d that threat.  We have 

            11  sent that to you several times, sir .  So we'll just handle 

            12  that one.  I hope that handles that  for you.

            13                 THE COURT:  Okay.  W hat I was trying to get 

            14  at and I didn't hear really was the  requirements of 

            15  CR 56(f) in terms of a continuance,  and I didn't hear that 

            16  from you. 

            17                 Fifty-six (f) requir es that there be -- 

            18  identify particular discovery, spec ific discovery that 

            19  needs to be done.  A good reason wh y it hasn't been done to 

            20  date and, of course, its relevance to the motion which is 

            21  being heard.  I think that based up on your oral arguments 

            22  and your written materials, those s tandards haven't been 

            23  met.  

            24                 There is an issue of  resolving cases in a 

            25  reasonable amount of time.  Cases a re expensive for 
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             1  everyone, and we try to make that a s efficient as 

             2  possible.  A request for striking t his motion or continuing 

             3  it for ten months would be unreason able.  Those are the 

             4  options you asked for.  Under any c ircumstances those would 

             5  be unreasonable.  

             6                 In terms of the oppo sition to the motion to 

             7  continue in 56(f), obviously the mo ving parties, the 

             8  plaintiffs, do object to it.  I mea n, it's obvious, I 

             9  guess, if I can say that again.  Wh ether the response was 

            10  due on Thursday, November 8th, or o n Friday, I'm not sure.  

            11  I haven't looked back on that and I  haven't counted those 

            12  days.  But what I look for is the o verall effect of 

            13  continuing it on the basis of that kind of circumstance 

            14  would be, I think, inappropriate.  You did have your 

            15  opportunity to reply and I think I take that into account. 

            16                 MR. DeCOURSEY:  Obje ction, Your Honor.  We 

            17  didn't have the opportunity to repl y since the hearing was 

            18  on Tuesday.

            19                 THE COURT:  I though t you said you filed a 

            20  reply.

            21                 MR. DeCOURSEY:  We f iled a reply Tuesday 

            22  morning, but there's no guarantee t hat you ever saw it or 

            23  that it got to your desk.

            24                 THE COURT:  Right, I  have those matters.  I 

            25  mean, it hasn't been addressed unti l now.  This is the 

Page 12 of  72



November 16, 2012  Summary Judgment Hearing

                                                                        13

             1  16th, so it's here.

             2                 So I think based upo n that, and I think I 

             3  want to make clear on the record my  analysis under 56(f), 

             4  that the motion to continue or to c ancel should be and is 

             5  denied.

             6                 So we'll move to the  motion on summary 

             7  judgment.

             8                 MR. SULKIN:  Thank y ou, Your Honor.  Again, 

             9  Bob Sulkin representing Lane Powell .

            10                 THE COURT:  I do wan t to say, though, to all 

            11  you folks.  I know there's a lot of  feeling in this case, 

            12  personal feeling, frustration, and I just want you to 

            13  recognize you're in a courtroom, yo u are to proceed 

            14  professionally on the issues.  Leav e your feelings about 

            15  other individuals, please, unexpres sed here.  We'll just 

            16  move on the record, on the law, and  on the facts in this 

            17  case.

            18                 MR. SULKIN:  Thank y ou, Your Honor.

            19                 Just to give a quick  background.  I know 

            20  you're fully familiar with the case .

            21                 THE COURT:  Been wit h it a long time as 

            22  you've pointed out.

            23                 MR. SULKIN:  It has been, Your Honor.

            24                 The DeCourseys paid $280,000 approximately 

            25  for a house that they claimed had s ome problems with due to 
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             1  construction work.

             2                 THE COURT:  Mr. Sulk in, I don't want to 

             3  interrupt too much, but I think tha t the issues of the 

             4  Windermere lawsuit are sensitive in  this case, and I don't 

             5  want any suggestion in this record that anything that I am 

             6  doing here is affected at all by th e facts of the 

             7  Windermere lawsuit.  So I'm going t o ask you to skip over 

             8  those facts.

             9                 MR. SULKIN:  I didn' t mean to do it that 

            10  way, Your Honor.  I was just wantin g to explain they got a 

            11  lot of money, but let's move to.

            12                 THE COURT:  Okay.

            13                 MR. SULKIN:  Let's j ust get to here.  There 

            14  are six independent reasons in and of themselves, each 

            15  standing alone to justify summary j udgment here.

            16                 THE COURT:  But befo re you -- one question.

            17                 MR. SULKIN:  Sure.

            18                 THE COURT:  This was  characterized at one 

            19  point as partial summary judgment, another point not.

            20                 MR. SULKIN:  Yeah, i t shouldn't have been.

            21                 THE COURT:  Is it --  

            22                 MR. SULKIN:  It's pa rtial in the sense that 

            23  we have other claims but they would  disappear.  It's for 

            24  everything.  So it's full summary j udgment.  We have 

            25  different ways to get to the same r esult, so -- 
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             1                 THE COURT:  Okay.

             2                 MR. SULKIN:  -- that 's why and that was 

             3  confusing on our part.

             4                 There are at least s ix independent bases to 

             5  grant summary judgment, and let me just, if I may, take you 

             6  through them one by one.  

             7                 First, Mr. Degginger  put in a declaration, 

             8  he's a Lane Powell lawyer-in-charge , setting forth the 

             9  reasonableness, the fees, the hours  and everything else and 

            10  it is uncontested, okay.  So unrebu tted evidence is reason 

            11  number one.

            12                 Reason number two, o n page four of their 

            13  response brief they concede the rea sonableness of the fees.  

            14  And to put a finer point on that, Y our Honor, what they say 

            15  is this is a contract question, whe ther or not the fees are 

            16  reasonable is irrelevant and they m ove on.  So they don't 

            17  even in a brief address the questio n is reason number two.

            18                 Reason number three,  you have a signed fee 

            19  agreement that is Exhibit Double N.   You also have a 

            20  statement which is Exhibit K, their  letter saying we owe 

            21  you the money.

            22                 THE COURT:  Are we o n four now or are we 

            23  still on three?  

            24                 MR. SULKIN:  This is  number three.

            25                 THE COURT:  Okay.
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             1                 MR. SULKIN:  You say  you have an agree -- 

             2  we can call it four, either way, yo u have an agreement to 

             3  pay.  Then you have an acknowledgem ent of payment which is 

             4  Exhibit K; we owe you the money.  A ll your fees were earned 

             5  and we owe you the money.  And I'm going to come back to 

             6  that in a minute.

             7                 Next reason, courts have already ruled on 

             8  the reasonableness of the hourly ra te and most of the fees 

             9  already.  That is, on the question of -- as you recall, 

            10  Your Honor, in the underlying case some fees were covered 

            11  by -- for fee shifting and other po rtions were not.  But 

            12  for the most part, the courts have ruled as to the 

            13  reasonableness of the rates and the  hours except for about 

            14  $4700.  Now, I'll address that in a  minute.

            15                 You have the issue o f judicial estoppel.  

            16  That is, they can't take a position  that the fees were 

            17  reasonable in one case and unreason able now. 

            18                 THE COURT:  Yes.

            19                 MR. SULKIN:  Okay, a nd they don't argue 

            20  that.

            21                 The next independent  reason is you have 

            22  struck all their affirmative defens es and all of their 

            23  counterclaims.  And in briefing to the Court of Appeals 

            24  which we point out in our brief, th ey state that's all we 

            25  have.  We have no other defenses bu t that.  So on a 
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             1  procedural basis they have no defen se, and they have 

             2  offered in their brief no evidence.   

             3                 Let me raise two iss ues if I may.  One is 

             4  the -- I think the number is $4700 is -- you may recall in 

             5  the Court of Appeals, the Court of Appeals awarded fees to 

             6  us.  The Supreme Court reduced the fees by $4739.57 based 

             7  on Mr. McBride's billing rate of $4 0, okay.  We're asking 

             8  for that, but if you decide we're n ot entitled to it, fine.  

             9  We've done the math to figure out w hat that comes out with 

            10  what interest.  So really the only issue is $40 on his 

            11  Court of Appeals issue, to be fair to the Court.

            12                 Second, the only thi ng they say in their 

            13  response is that the lawyers billed  for copying time.  I 

            14  think you may have seen that.  Well , first, all those other 

            15  defenses would apply to that argume nt, but more importantly 

            16  it's just not true, okay.  And we k now that because what 

            17  they did was they saw, for instance , that lawyer X -- they 

            18  looked at the cost and said lawyer X typed in his code 

            19  copy, okay, but if you look at the billing record he didn't 

            20  charge for it.  So, for instance, M r. Gable had copies made 

            21  on -- 

            22                 THE COURT:  Are thes e copies and charges 

            23  that were before the court -- 

            24                 MR. SULKIN:  Yes.

            25                 THE COURT:  -- after  the Windermere 
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             1  litigation ended that the courts re viewed and made -- 

             2                 MR. SULKIN:  This is  from November of '07.

             3                 THE COURT:  Okay.

             4                 MR. SULKIN:  It's al ready been reviewed.  He 

             5  doesn't say I charged for billing - - for copying.  It's 

             6  just a stalking horse argument.  

             7                 So in the end, Your Honor, you know, there's 

             8  nothing more to say here.  It's gon e on long enough.  I 

             9  understand the frustration all the way around.  I don't 

            10  want to tie into it, but I think su mmary judgment is 

            11  warranted and based on both procedu ral reasons and 

            12  substantive reasons.

            13                 THE COURT:  Now, the  question.

            14                 MR. SULKIN:  Sure.

            15                 THE COURT:  So you'r e seeking from this 

            16  court now an award of attorney's fe es which are the damages 

            17  really in your case, isn't that cor rect?  

            18                 MR. SULKIN:  Correct .

            19                 THE COURT:  So to th e extent that those -- 

            20  that the actual judgment you're see king here today is 

            21  damages for the attorney's fees tha t were -- argued were 

            22  earned and haven't been paid?

            23                 MR. SULKIN:  Yes.

            24                 THE COURT:  All of t hose have been addressed 

            25  by other courts, correct, except ma ybe $4700?  
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             1                 MR. SULKIN:  Well, n ot quite true.  To be 

             2  fair, Your Honor -- 

             3                 THE COURT:  Yes.

             4                 MR. SULKIN:  -- if I  may.

             5                 THE COURT:  Well, le t me -- 

             6                 MR. SULKIN:  Sure.

             7                 THE COURT:  May I re phrase the question?

             8                 MR. SULKIN:  Absolut ely.

             9                 THE COURT:  All of t he fees that you're 

            10  seeking by way of damages in this c ase, by way of damages, 

            11  I can make a distinction between da mages and attorney's 

            12  fees that you may be seeking and ma y be not be seeking in 

            13  this case, but all of the fees that  you are seeking by way 

            14  of damages that were fees that were  earned in the 

            15  Windermere litigation have been add ressed by the trial 

            16  court and the Court of Appeals and the Supreme Court, maybe 

            17  two of those?

            18                 MR. SULKIN:  Yes, wi th an asterisk if I may.

            19                 THE COURT:  Go ahead .

            20                 MR. SULKIN:  Okay.  There were certain 

            21  claims in the underlying Windermere  case, I don't want to 

            22  get into it, for which there was fe e shifting, okay.

            23                 THE COURT:  Yes.

            24                 MR. SULKIN:  And cer tain claims for which 

            25  there was not fee shifting.  And wh at the courts did was 
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             1  look at the fees relating to the fe e shifting but not to 

             2  the others.  So, for instance, in t he Court of Appeals, 

             3  Judge Fox in the trial court gave u s $47,000 approximately 

             4  in fees for certain fees.  The Cour t of Appeals says no, 

             5  fee shifting didn't apply to those.   And there may be some 

             6  other fees related to non-fee shift ing issues which may not 

             7  have been addressed by the court.  

             8                 Our point though is -- on that issue is 

             9  twofold.  One, as to all the fees i n the underlying case 

            10  they agreed through Exhibit K that they're due and owing 

            11  and fair.  And second, the rates ha ve all been blessed.  

            12  The only fees to have been found to  be unwarranted -- they 

            13  were found to be warranted by the C ourt of Appeal's 

            14  commissioner but not warranted by t he commissioner of the 

            15  Supreme Court was the approximately  $4700 by Mr. McBride, 

            16  okay.

            17                 All the money -- to give you sort of -- to 

            18  put this in a neat bow if I may, wh at they want -- they've 

            19  been paid all their damages, okay.  They've been paid all 

            20  their damages.  What they want is t he fees we earned.  I 

            21  mean, those aren't damages to them,  that's money that's 

            22  owed to us.  So all we're asking is  to be paid our fees 

            23  which is our second lien and we're ready to go.

            24                 THE COURT:  But what  I'm trying to get at 

            25  is there any fee that you're seekin g here today that was 
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             1  related to performance on the Winde rmere litigation that 

             2  wasn't either, a, approved by the c ourt in the Windermere 

             3  litigation or, b, was a part of an application to the court 

             4  in the Windermere litigation?  Is t here any Windermere 

             5  litigation fees you're asking me to  review that haven't 

             6  been reviewed by another court?

             7                 MR. SULKIN:  There a re certain fees that 

             8  have not been reviewed by a court b ut which they agree 

             9  through Exhibit K were reasonable.

            10                 THE COURT:  Okay.

            11                 MR. SULKIN:  And whi ch would -- all the 

            12  other defenses would apply.  And th ose same fees that were 

            13  not -- they put no defense into the  Degginger declaration.  

            14  So all those defenses I've given yo u, Degginger's 

            15  declaration applies to all fees.

            16                 THE COURT:  Okay.

            17                 MR. SULKIN:  Exhibit  K applies to all fees 

            18  but for the ones in the Court of Ap peals.  Before the court 

            19  does look at those and we got bless ing, all the hourly 

            20  rates were reviewed and found reaso nable.

            21                 THE COURT:  Yes.

            22                 MR. SULKIN:  Okay.  So I hope that fairly 

            23  answers your question.

            24                 THE COURT:  I think it does, and it should 

            25  be obvious to you why I'm asking.
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             1                 MR. SULKIN:  Yes, I understand.

             2                 THE COURT:  Yes.

             3                 MR. SULKIN:  Thank y ou.

             4                 THE COURT:  Okay.  N ow, for Defense who's 

             5  going to argue?

             6                 MR. DeCOURSEY:  Well , we're both going to 

             7  argue because we're both defendants  in this suit.

             8                 THE COURT:  Okay, fa ir enough.  Then you 

             9  may go ahead and proceed.

            10                 MR. DeCOURSEY:  Lane  Powell has asserted 

            11  over and over again that they taxed  all fees to Windermere 

            12  that were involved in the Windermer e suit.  That statement 

            13  alone is false.  During November, D ecember of 2008, 

            14  January, February and March of 2009 , there was almost 

            15  $40,000 in fees that Lane Powell in voiced to us and did not 

            16  tax to Windermere, though they had full opportunity to do 

            17  so.  That was -- so their statement  -- that statement is 

            18  false.  

            19                 At the Court of Appe als Lane Powell 

            20  completely consented to dropping a -- one of the supports 

            21  for the suit, the real estate purch ase and sale agreement.  

            22  Under the Pluer v. Fritz (phonetic) , the court had found 

            23  and the Supreme Court had found tha t there is a full 

            24  support for expenses of the suit pr ovide in -- provided in 

            25  the Windermere real estate purchase  and sale agreement 
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             1  supported a much broader basis for fees than were supported 

             2  in the Consumer Protection Act.  An d so they got 100% of 

             3  their fees.  And under that argumen t we were able to get 

             4  100% of our fees at the trial level .

             5                 At the Court of Appe als Lane Powell 

             6  permitted that leg of support for t he fees to be dropped, 

             7  and thereby they lost us $45,000 in  costs and about $52,000 

             8  in fees at the Court of Appeals.  T hey refused to take that 

             9  issue to the Supreme Court even tho ugh they had a 

            10  contractual obligation to appeal al l awards that were award 

            11  setbacks in the -- for the processi ng.  Those things 

            12  directly counter what Mr. Sulkin wa s saying.

            13                 There are a few othe r issues and we did 

            14  provide these in the written defens e to the summary 

            15  judgment.

            16                 THE COURT:  Yes.

            17                 MR. DeCOURSEY:  It's  quite an annoyance to 

            18  have my opponent present my argumen ts for me in the most 

            19  unfavorable light. 

            20                 THE COURT:  I'm sure , Mr. DeCoursey, it's a 

            21  common occurrence in court whether there are lawyers on 

            22  both sides or not, so it's people a nticipating your 

            23  arguments and wanting to make them.

            24                 MR. DeCOURSEY:  Neve rtheless, I choose to be 

            25  more polite.  I will not characteri ze his arguments except 
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             1  where he says things that are direc tly false.

             2                 The exfoliation of e vidence comes into it 

             3  because we found evidence of fraud over the photocopies.  

             4  The photocopying involves $4,000 in  timekeeper billings 

             5  where they go to the photocopier, p hotocopy 1400 pages, 

             6  then go back to the desk and bill f or four hours that day, 

             7  or three or four hours depending on  the wage earner. 

             8                 I presented a spread sheet of those costs to 

             9  this court.  That information was n ot available to the 

            10  courts when Lane Powell provided th e affidavits of fees and 

            11  costs and so those courts did not s ee them.  We did not see 

            12  them either.

            13                 In the December 2008  agreement which Lane 

            14  Powell has structured as being part  of the agreement, the 

            15  two of them together, referred to t hem as "the agreement" 

            16  in its motion for summary judgment.   If so, we should look 

            17  at those two documents, the one sig ned in 2007 and the one 

            18  in 2008.  We should look at them as  a unit, and as a unit 

            19  they are in violation of the Rules of Professional 

            20  Conduct.  Specifically Rule 1.8 pro vides that "a lawyer 

            21  shall not make an agreement prospec tively limiting the 

            22  lawyer's liability to a client for malpractice unless 

            23  permitted by law and the client is independently 

            24  represented."  

            25                 When we signed those  agreements we were not 
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             1  independently represented.  Lane Po well inserted a clause 

             2  in the 2008 agreement that says tha t the DeCourseys agreed 

             3  that Lane Powell's fees delivered w ere necessarily incurred 

             4  in their litigation given our oppon ent's strategy.  They've 

             5  taken that clause, they've inserted  -- they've imported it 

             6  into the summary judgment and they' ve used it exactly as 

             7  the Rules of Professional Conduct f orbids them to do which 

             8  is as a perspective -- excuse me --  as a prospective 

             9  limitation on our ability to claim malpractice against Lane 

            10  Powell.

            11                 There is one more th ing I'd like to present.

            12                 THE COURT:  Sure.

            13                 MR. DeCOURSEY:  The discovery issue comes up 

            14  again because we specifically asked  Lane Powell to support 

            15  its cost that it billed to us, supp ort those costs with 

            16  documentation.  Instead, Lane Powel l in some places refused 

            17  to answer the interrogatories, refu sed to answer the 

            18  productions.  This is in our motion  for -- to continue this 

            19  hearing.  

            20                 In other places they  waved vaguely at 35 

            21  banker boxes full of documentation and said it's in there.  

            22  It's in the discovery materials, th e support for their 

            23  costs.  Well, it isn't in there.  T hey have said a needle 

            24  is someplace in that haystack, ther efore, we don't have to 

            25  answer your questions.  But that is n't an answer to the 
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             1  question.  I could also say that an swer is someplace in the 

             2  public library and that isn't an an swer to the question.

             3                 Hang on just a momen t, please.

             4                 THE COURT:  Yes, sir .

             5                 MR. DeCOURSEY:  The discovery materials that 

             6  they dumped on us after they moved for summary judgment 

             7  included 11,000 -- what they say is  11,000 documents, but 

             8  in fact, turned out to be 63,000 fi les.  They even admit 

             9  effectively to exfoliating those fi les.  They saw that the 

            10  log -- that they're Microsoft Word files but when they get 

            11  to us they're only pictures of thos e documents.  Pictures 

            12  that cannot be indexed, cannot be s earched, cannot be -- 

            13  all that can be done is printed and  looked over.  

            14                 In effect, by produc ing that late in October 

            15  after filing for summary judgment, after dragging their 

            16  feet for ten months on the producti on of this discovery 

            17  material, they have fallen firmly i nto the qualification of 

            18  CR 56(f) which says you can't do it .  You can't.  

            19                 They should be subje ct to the spoliation.  

            20  The Spoliation Rule says you must i nfer that what they are 

            21  hiding by exfoliating the evidence,  by destroying the files 

            22  and tearing them up, by withholding  them from us and then 

            23  dumping them one week before our re sponse is due, that what 

            24  they have -- the Court must infer t hat the evidence is 

            25  contrary to their claims and contra ry to their defenses.  
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             1  That's a standard rule in Washingto n courts.  Since we have 

             2  proven some fraud among their billi ng, then it's reasonable 

             3  to infer that what they are hiding by withholding evidence 

             4  is more fraud.  And fraud vitiates everything it touches. 

             5                 MRS. DeCOURSEY:  We will agree that this 

             6  court has stricken our counterclaim s because it says on the 

             7  piece of paper that you gave us.  W e can see that.  And the 

             8  defense we claim -- 

             9                 THE COURT REPORTER:  Your Honor, I cannot 

            10  hear her.

            11                 THE COURT:  Excuse m e, it may be more 

            12  comfortable coming up here.

            13                 MRS. DeCOURSEY:  Oh,  yes, of course.

            14                 THE COURT:  I think the problem the court 

            15  reporter is having hearing you is w hen you look down and 

            16  talk.

            17                 MRS. DeCOURSEY:  Oka y, sure.

            18                 THE COURT:  Keep you r head up and maybe it's 

            19  easier up here.

            20                 MRS. DeCOURSEY:  So what the claim for was 

            21  breach of fiduciary duty, fraud, br each of contract, 

            22  conflicts of interest, malpractice,  consumer protection 

            23  violation, malicious prosecution, u njust enrichment and 

            24  extortion.  Now, all of those cause s of action claims, what 

            25  have you, defenses have been strick en.  
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             1                 What happens when we  go to trial?  Mark and 

             2  I will, thus having all our defense s and other claims taken 

             3  from us, will be like people who ha ve all of our limbs 

             4  amputated.  I mean, what will a jur y think?  What is the 

             5  scenario that you envision after th at?

             6                 THE COURT:  I will a nswer that question 

             7  because my understanding is that it  is the plaintiff's 

             8  position in this case that if the m otion for summary 

             9  judgment is granted here there is n othing left to try.

            10                 MRS. DeCOURSEY:  I g et you.

            11                 THE COURT:  The case  is over -- 

            12                 MR. DeCOURSEY:  Than k you very much.  Thank 

            13  you for clarifying that.

            14                 THE COURT:  -- is my  understanding.

            15                 Mr. Sulkin, you may have an opportunity to 

            16  respond.

            17                 MRS. DeCOURSEY:  Oka y.  Thank you, sir.

            18                 All right.  Now, tha t I would say was very 

            19  good legal work on Lane Powell's pa rt, but let's have a 

            20  look at how they got to their prese nt state.

            21                 First thing Lane Pow ell told the court, by 

            22  firing our -- firing them on August  3rd, 2011, we broke our 

            23  contract with Lane Powell.  And the y said that in there 

            24  complaint on page 3, line 25 -- app roximately line 25.  

            25  Okay.  But right here, sir, I have our agreement on 
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             1  September 19th, 2007.  That agreeme nt stipulates that 

             2  either of us, Lane Powell or DeCour seys, can terminate the 

             3  agreement at any time.  So the fact  that we terminated them 

             4  on August 3rd, 2011 was not a breac h of contract.  I have 

             5  the paper right here, so that's an untruth they told the 

             6  Court.  And they knew it was untrue  when they told it.

             7                 Number two, Lane Pow ell told the Court after 

             8  we fired them that we secretly made  an arrangement with 

             9  Windermere to pay us the final sati sfaction of judgment, 

            10  and that we went behind Windermere' s back -- I'm sorry, 

            11  Lane Powell's back to make that arr angement.  And they said 

            12  that in the plaintiff's motion to r equire deposit of funds 

            13  with the court registry December 13 th, 2011.  Page one, 

            14  line one to five.

            15                 Sir, I offer you thi s.  This is a 

            16  declaration signed by Lane Powell, Grant Degginger on 

            17  December 30th, 2011, and in there h e swears under penalty 

            18  of perjury that he knew that back i n August 2011 that we 

            19  were doing exactly that.  He spoke to our replacement 

            20  counsel on this very subject.  So L ane Powell fully knew 

            21  that we were attempting to get a pa yment of the judgment.  

            22  So that's line number two.  

            23                 Forgive me, misrepre sentation number two.  I 

            24  will try to clean my language up to  make it lawyerly. 

            25  Okay.  All righty. 
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             1                 Now, moreover, on Se ptember 28th, 2011, I 

             2  have that letter here, Lane Powell wrote to Mr. Paul 

             3  Fogarty who had attempted to negoti ate a settlement in 

             4  which he said that Lane Powell has not -- refused to 

             5  cooperate with the DeCourseys in an  effort to obtain 

             6  payment to the contrary.  We would like to see that the 

             7  DeCourseys are paid.  Lane Powell s imply asserted a lien 

             8  for payment on its fees in accordan ce with RCW 60.40.010 

             9  applicable law.  So that is another  verification of a Lane 

            10  Powell untruth.  They were an untru th machine.  Just keep 

            11  on churning and churning and churni ng it out.

            12                 Okay, next point.  L ane told the court that 

            13  we lied about the amount of money o n the Lane Powell claim 

            14  and cheated it out of the full lien  amount.  That's what he 

            15  said.  They said that on the motion  to require the deposit 

            16  of funds in court originally Decemb er 19 -- page 1, 

            17  lines 19 through 26.

            18                 But Lane Powell's ow n witness, Pamela Okano 

            19  herself testified in court about th e amount of Lane 

            20  Powell's lien.  This document is ri ght here.  Okano's sworn 

            21  declaration she said that was exact ly the same amount as we 

            22  stated in our court records, so Lan e Powell's witness 

            23  actually testifies against the vera city of Lane Powell's 

            24  statements.

            25                 Next point, Lane Pow ell has told the Court 
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             1  that Windermere sued us after the j udgment had been secured 

             2  against Windermere and because we t hen failed to pay Lane 

             3  Powell.  And they said that in the response to our motion 

             4  to vacate and recuse Your Honor on -- they said that on 

             5  August the 15th, 2011, page 4, line s 13 to 14.  

             6                 But let's think this  through carefully.  

             7  Lane Powell has demanded payment.  Lane Powell had demanded 

             8  payment after the judgment was paid .  The first partial 

             9  payment of judgment was filed on No vember the 4th; November 

            10  the 4th.  Now, they filed their sui t on October the 5th.  

            11  October the 5th comes before Novemb er the 4th.  So then 

            12  knowing we had not yet been paid, L ane Powell filed suit 

            13  against us for not paying them, pre tending that we had run 

            14  away with their pot of gold.  But t hat's not true either.  

            15  Okay.  They told a myriad of untrut hs throughout this 

            16  proceeding.  

            17                 Why is telling the t ruth in court 

            18  important?  Because the courts must  find the truth so they 

            19  can dispense justice.  Therefore, i t's wrong to lie to the 

            20  court.  Most especially it's wrong for officers of the 

            21  court, attorneys to knowingly make provenly false 

            22  statements.  

            23                 And, sir, forgive me  for my frankness, it's 

            24  even more wrong for judges to knowi ngly accept those 

            25  provenly untrue statements, allow t he untruthful statements 
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             1  to stand and to adopt the untruth s tatements as judicial 

             2  verities.

             3                 Now let me move on t o the discovery  

             4  controversy.  The very day Lane Pow ell filed the suit it 

             5  issued a series of discovery reques ts which demanded all of 

             6  our attorney/client privileges on a ll subjects.  Judges and 

             7  experienced litigators know the rul es of discovery and 

             8  evidence.  They know that CR 26(b),  ER 502, and the Pappas 

             9  versus Holloway precedent apply.  T here was no legitimate 

            10  reason to charge us with discovery violations.  We told 

            11  them they could -- we absolutely co ncede all kinds of 

            12  documents having to do with the sub ject of the lawsuit 

            13  which is breach of contract and bla h, blah, blah.  The suit 

            14  is an argument about fees and servi ces.  They have that 

            15  kind of material.

            16                 But their message wa s simple, pay up 

            17  whatever we demand or we'll force y our confidences into 

            18  evidence.  And ordinary parlance th ere is called extortion 

            19  and we have justifiably charged Lan e Powell with exactly 

            20  that.

            21                 But nonetheless, thi s discovery brouhaha 

            22  that was used as an excuse to strik e our claims and 

            23  defenses, I ask several things.  Fi rst of all, I say that 

            24  law firms are a part of our system of public trust.  Judges 

            25  should not allow them to do what La ne Powell has done, lied 
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             1  to the Court repeatedly basic issue s of the case and get 

             2  away with it.  Law firms cannot be permitted to treat their 

             3  clients like Enron and Worldcom and  Bernie Madoff.  The 

             4  clients must -- law firms cannot be  permitted to blackmail 

             5  their -- 

             6                 THE COURT REPORTER:  Can you slow down, 

             7  please?  

             8                 MRS. DeCOURSEY:  Law  firms must not be 

             9  permitted to blackmail their client s over privileged 

            10  material. 

            11                 I ask the Court to r estore the trust of the 

            12  people this day and put the judicia l system to repudiate 

            13  the lies Lane Powell has put before  the Court and the Court 

            14  has accepted.  That the Court resto re our counterclaim of 

            15  defendants and that the Court deny Lane Powell's motion for 

            16  partial summary judgment.

            17                 And, Judge, I really  do understand your 

            18  sympathy with the issue of Winderme re.  It's -- we have 

            19  done our very best to expose their unlawful actions and the 

            20  corruption of the government agenci es that allows them to 

            21  have, you know, an unfair place in the marketplace.  And I 

            22  understand that your wife works for  them and you love her 

            23  and she loves you and all of that, and we're very 

            24  sympathetic to that.  But really, s ir, it doesn't look good 

            25  and it doesn't feel good and it doe sn't -- it doesn't -- it 
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             1  doesn't -- it's not good.

             2                 THE COURT:  Sure, I understand.  I just want 

             3  you to understand too even though m y wife was not involved 

             4  in this agent -- or with this offic e of the agent or 

             5  anything -- 

             6                 MRS. DeCOURSEY:  I u nderstand that, sir.

             7                 THE COURT:  -- she's  an independent agent 

             8  like most are.

             9                 MRS. DeCOURSEY:  But  Windermere operates -- 

            10  I believe we have been through it.  Windermere operates as 

            11  a single company.  They do, sir.  T hey do indeed.  You 

            12  should have a look at our page, Win dermere Victims dot com.  

            13  You might learn quite a lot about y our wife's employer.

            14                 THE COURT:  Okay.

            15                 MRS. DeCOURSEY:  So -- 

            16                 THE COURT:  Okay.

            17                 MRS. DeCOURSEY:  -- we can understand that 

            18  you're feeling protective but still  anyway, enough said.

            19                 THE COURT:  Okay.

            20                 MRS. DeCOURSEY:  Tha nk you very much.

            21                 THE COURT:  Fair eno ugh.

            22                 MR. SULKIN:  The $45 ,000 in costs that they 

            23  now claim fraud on, those costs wer e reviewed by Judge Fox 

            24  and approved.  In fact, if we look at Exhibit H which is 

            25  the Court of Appeal's decision, and  if you turn, 
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             1  Your Honor, to page 36 of that opin ion, it explains exactly 

             2  what happened.  

             3                 What happened was th at Judge Fox -- and I'm 

             4  at that second full paragraph here "the record reveals" and 

             5  the footnote.  What happened was Ju dge Fox ordered the 

             6  defendants to pay costs $45,442.  I n other words, he looked 

             7  at everything and said you owe it.  And he said you owe it 

             8  under the real estate purchase and sale agreement.  And the 

             9  Court of Appeals said wait a minute , you're not suing the 

            10  seller.  So the very costs that the y're claiming were the 

            11  subject of fraud, it's just -- all the reasons I gave you 

            12  apply there.

            13                 Lastly, at Exhibit A , page four, it is their 

            14  brief to the Court of Appeals where  they say all of the 

            15  defenses are the ones you struck.  So I'm happy to answer 

            16  Exhibit A, page four if that's what  you're looking for, 

            17  Your Honor.

            18                 THE COURT:  No, I've  got no problem.  I may 

            19  have a couple of questions for you.

            20                 MR. DeCOURSEY:  Sure .  And obviously I 

            21  dispute the claims that Ms. DeCours ey made about Lane 

            22  Powell lying and the rest of it.  I 'm not going to take 

            23  them on one by one, but I'm happy t o answer any questions 

            24  you have.

            25                 THE COURT:  Okay.  H old on just a moment.
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             1                 I have a basic quest ion to ask but I want to 

             2  check something.

             3                 Well, let me ask thi s.   Again, this is a 

             4  repeat of the question I asked you before.  In this case 

             5  your client is seeking by way of da mages -- it's not a fee 

             6  petition to bar -- request fees be approved which is an 

             7  action for damages now in their cur rent standing.  For 

             8  action for damages for fees that ha ve either been approved 

             9  by courts related to the Windermere  litigation or were fees 

            10  which the DeCourseys participated i n submitting to the 

            11  court as reasonable and necessary i n the Windermere 

            12  litigation.  Is that correct?

            13                 MR. SULKIN:  There w ere certain fee that 

            14  were not submitted to the court tha t everyone agreed were 

            15  not covered by fee shifting, Your H onor.

            16                 THE COURT:  Okay.  S o if they weren't 

            17  submitted to the court on those fee s, are you asking me at 

            18  this time to determine the reasonab leness of those fees, or 

            19  are they already been determined by  some prior proceedings 

            20  here?

            21                 MR. SULKIN:  The hou rly rates we believe 

            22  have been determined to be reasonab le because the same 

            23  lawyer is working on them.  The num ber of hours we believe 

            24  we put in evidence before you, that  is Degginger's 

            25  declaration laying out all the fees , and there's no 
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             1  response.

             2                 Now, I believe you c an look at those fees 

             3  through that declaration and decide  whether you believe 

             4  there's something improper there.  We don't believe there 

             5  are -- there is, period.

             6                 THE COURT:  Excuse m e.  Just so I'm 

             7  understanding as we go along.  Are those fees that you're 

             8  asking me to look at to determine i f I see anything wrong 

             9  with them related to the Windermere  litigation -- 

            10                 MR. SULKIN:  Yes.

            11                 THE COURT:  -- direc tly?

            12                 MR. SULKIN:  Yes.

            13                 THE COURT:  Okay.  A nd where do I find those 

            14  fees set out?

            15                 MR. SULKIN:  The Deg ginger declaration is 

            16  attached to our -- 

            17                 THE COURT REPORTER:  To your what, counsel?

            18                 MR. SULKIN:  Opening  brief.

            19                 THE COURT REPORTER:  Thank you.

            20                 THE COURT:  Okay.  N ow, with respect to 

            21  those fees, do any of the estoppel arguments that you've 

            22  made apply?

            23                 MR. SULKIN:  The one s -- to the fees covered 

            24  by Judge Fox's ruling that were uph eld by the Court of 

            25  Appeals, yes.
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             1                 THE COURT:  No, thos e are all covered -- 

             2                 MR. SULKIN:  Yeah.

             3                 THE COURT:  -- right ?  But to the additional 

             4  fees, the ones that aren't -- that haven't been submitted 

             5  to the court that were held back, i n what way in this 

             6  proceeding have the DeCourseys agre ed that those were 

             7  reasonable fees?

             8                 MR. SULKIN:  Okay.  They've done it three 

             9  ways if I may, Your Honor.

            10                 THE COURT:  Yes.

            11                 MR. SULKIN:  In the format of summary 

            12  judgment.  First, they've not respo nded to put in a -- 

            13  they've not responded to the Deggin ger declaration.  He put 

            14  in a declaration and they could hav e put in something 

            15  saying they were -- fees were unrea sonable.  They have not 

            16  done that. 

            17                 Second, if we look a t their response brief, 

            18  Your Honor, at page four of their r esponse brief, what they 

            19  write at lines 10 through 13 it say s, "Lane Powell spends 

            20  much of its text arguing that fees were quote, unqote, 

            21  reasonable."  I'll wait until you g et there, Your Honor.  

            22  I'm at lines 10 through 13.

            23                 THE COURT:  Page 4, 10 through 15.

            24                 MR. SULKIN:  "Such a rgument is 

            25  inappropriate and irrelevant."  In other words, they don't 
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             1  even take it out off the issue.  I mean, they don't argue 

             2  that they're not reasonable.  

             3                 So we put it a Deggi nger declaration.  So 

             4  not only do they not put in somethi ng in response, they 

             5  don't even -- they've nothing to ev en say about it from a 

             6  legal point of view.

             7                 Third argument is yo u struck all their 

             8  defenses.  I mean, at the end of th e day you struck the 

             9  defenses and for good reason, and f or a reason the Court of 

            10  Appeals refused to flip.  

            11                 Next reason.  Exhibi t K to our -- it's a 

            12  letter they sent to us, okay.  It's  framed as we writing it 

            13  to them in which -- 

            14                 MR. DeCOURSEY:  Excu se me? 

            15                 MR. SULKIN:  In whic h they say -- 

            16                 THE COURT:  Exhibit K.  Do you have 

            17  Exhibit K? 

            18                 MR. DeCOURSEY:  Yes,  we have Exhibit K.

            19                 THE COURT:  Okay, th at's where -- 

            20                 MR. DeCOURSEY:  But it's not a letter from 

            21  us to them.

            22                 THE COURT:  Okay.

            23                 MR. SULKIN:  If I ma y?

            24                 THE COURT:  Yes.

            25                 MR. SULKIN:  You'll see there's a fax from 
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             1  them to Mr. Norris at Lane Powell w here they sign, asking 

             2  Norris to sign for -- to sign too, okay.  In other words, 

             3  the first page of the exhibit is th e fax, one page back.

             4                 THE COURT:  Yeah.

             5                 MR. SULKIN:  And you 'll see it's from Mark 

             6  DeCoursey to Fred Norris.  Norris i s the Lane Powell 

             7  lawyer, okay.  And he says, "please  fax back signed copy.  

             8  Have ready for pick up," okay.  

             9                 And so if we go to p age two they say they'll 

            10  agree to pay all the fees, and not only that, they're fair, 

            11  honest and everything else.  So, ag ain, each of these are 

            12  independent reasons.  If K didn't e xist you'd still have 

            13  all the others.  If the others didn 't exist you would still 

            14  have K.  And if none existed you'd still have your order 

            15  denying all their -- striking all t heir defenses.  And so 

            16  at the end of the day no matter how  you take it, you come 

            17  to the same place.

            18                 THE COURT:  I wish I  could go back and 

            19  redraft that because what I meant i s strike all the 

            20  defenses but still put upon the pla intiff a requirement to 

            21  prove their claim.

            22                 MR. SULKIN:  And, Yo ur Honor, I took it that 

            23  way which is why I put the Degginge r declaration into 

            24  evidence so that we would be provin g our claim, okay.  

            25                 And ultimately that is our -- you know, we 
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             1  came forth with our burden, we put the evidence before you.  

             2  In fact, Judge Fox gave us a 30% ki cker on our fee because 

             3  we did such a great job.  We meanin g Lane Powell, and they 

             4  haven't responded to the evidence w e put forward. 

             5                 THE COURT:  How much  is in the Degginger 

             6  declaration that was not passed on or agreed to in the -- 

             7                 MR. SULKIN:  I did n ot separate it out.  I 

             8  can -- if you need that -- 

             9                 THE COURT:  I think I need to have that, 

            10  right.

            11                 MR. SULKIN:  I can - - I can't do that right 

            12  now, Your Honor, but if not I can s eparate that out for 

            13  you.

            14                 THE COURT:  All righ t.  And I am -- 

            15                 MR. SULKIN:  I belie ve the number's around, 

            16  if I may, a hundred and something - - a hundred to two 

            17  hundred thousand.  Something in the re.

            18                 THE COURT:  So it's a substantial amount.  

            19  And all based though on hourly rate s that were approved by 

            20  courts during the course of this pr oceeding.

            21                 MR. SULKIN:  Correct , Your Honor.

            22                 THE COURT:  Okay.

            23                 MR. SULKIN:  And whi ch, just to be fair, 

            24  and the number of hours have not be en attacked by them in 

            25  this case.
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             1                 THE COURT:  How read ily comes to your mind 

             2  the case of Moeller versus Scucs?  

             3                 THE COURT REPORTER:  I'm sorry, Your Honor? 

             4                 THE COURT:  Moeller versus Scucs, that's 

             5  S-C-U-C-S.

             6                 MR. SULKIN:  I'm not  -- to be fair, it 

             7  doesn't.

             8                 THE COURT:  All righ t.

             9                 MR. SULKIN:  But I'm  pretty good at the 

            10  law.  If you want to -- 

            11                 THE COURT:  The ques tion -- the question 

            12  that's embedded in this is the cour t's responsibility --

            13                 MR. SULKIN:  Which i s why, Your Honor -- 

            14  yeah, I think the court -- you said  this, if I may.  You 

            15  said to me this is a damages claim by Lane Powell and it's 

            16  true.  I don't think at the end of the day a jury gets to 

            17  decide the fairness of fees.  That' s a court decision which 

            18  is why we put this before you.

            19                 THE COURT:  Okay.  T he distinction that 

            20  you're making is when fees are dama ges rather than approval 

            21  of fees as reasonable fees under --  

            22                 MR. SULKIN:  But we think both -- I think 

            23  the Court -- we think the Court sho uld look at the fees to 

            24  make sure its comfortable with them .  In other words, that 

            25  I don't have a problem with which i s why we put them before 
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             1  you if you feel that way.  I'm just  saying we laid it out, 

             2  they don't have anyone coming in sa ying they're 

             3  unreasonable.  You do have an indep endent obligation.

             4                 THE COURT:  That wou ld just be as to then as 

             5  it appears to me here to the number  of hours.

             6                 MR. SULKIN:  Correct , which is why, 

             7  Your Honor, if I may.

             8                 THE COURT:  Yes.

             9                 MR. SULKIN:  I start ed and I'll try and keep 

            10  this short, on the Windermere case.   And the reason I said 

            11  it is that Judge Fox himself said i n his -- and we put his 

            12  transcript -- it's long.

            13                 THE COURT:  I saw th at.

            14                 MR. SULKIN:  He hims elf said the reason so 

            15  much was spent on fees was because of Windermere's conduct.  

            16  I mean, Judge Fox looked at the num ber of hours in this 

            17  case clearly, at least as to covere d issues but as a whole.  

            18  And he blamed Windermere for that, for that very issue.  

            19                 So we have some stat ement as to the number 

            20  of hours and why they may have been  high, but if you 

            21  subtract out -- I think the number is, if you just took 

            22  what's out of their pocket in the c ase where they get a 

            23  hundred to $822,000, that was the d amages award; that is, 

            24  522 in damages plus 270 in settleme nt, the total fees out 

            25  of their pocket is $115,000.  I mea n, it's -- by any 
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             1  measure it's good, that's reasonabl e.  But, again -- well, 

             2  I'll stop here.

             3                 THE COURT:  I just w ant to get that 

             4  affidavit in front of me again befo re I get you off the 

             5  hook here.

             6                 It's the Grant -- 

             7                 MR. SULKIN:  Degging er, yes.

             8                 THE COURT:  -- Deggi nger.  And it's the -- 

             9  under tab SMA?

            10                 MR. SULKIN:  Correct .

            11                 THE COURT:  And it's  the one that's dated 

            12  October 17th?

            13                 MR. SULKIN:  Correct .

            14                 THE COURT:  And we h ave attachments to that.  

            15  Is there any way that you can tell me on those attachments 

            16  where the hours that you think that  I need to look at or a 

            17  judge needs to look at as being rea sonable?

            18                 MR. SULKIN:  The sho rt answer is no.  The 

            19  longer answer is I don't know that it's -- it's that simple 

            20  because you had a situation, Your H onor, where certain 

            21  claims were covered and certain wer en't, but the work was 

            22  done as to both.  

            23                 And so I believe wha t happened though I 

            24  wasn't there, Judge Fox looked at e verything and he made -- 

            25  he kind of does this and says this is what's a fair -- this 
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             1  is what's a fair number of hours.  So it became difficult.  

             2  If it was easy I certainly would ha ve done that for you.

             3                 THE COURT:  Okay.  T here are some hours here 

             4  that were not approved by any court  during the -- that was 

             5  involved in the Windermere litigati on and that were not 

             6  supported by declaration, affidavit  or some representation 

             7  by the DeCourseys that those fees w ere reasonably incurred 

             8  in asking someone else to pay for t hem.

             9                 MR. SULKIN:  That I don't think is accurate, 

            10  Your Honor.

            11                 THE COURT:  No?  

            12                 MR. SULKIN:  Exhibit  K, which you just 

            13  looked at -- 

            14                 THE COURT:  Right.

            15                 MR. SULKIN:  -- appl ies to all of the fees 

            16  in the underlying case.  All five - - I think 522 because 

            17  that case is finished.  Then after that there was an appeal 

            18  to the Court of Appeals.

            19                 THE COURT:  Yes.

            20                 MR. SULKIN:  The Cou rt of Appeals did review 

            21  the hours and approved -- 

            22                 THE COURT:  Some.

            23                 MR. SULKIN:  I think  some or all -- 

            24                 THE COURT:  All the hours on appeal.

            25                 MR. SULKIN:  Yeah, a ll on appeal.  So in 
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             1  that sense everything is covered be tween the letter and the 

             2  Court of Appeals.  And if all is co vered by Degginger's 

             3  declaration, but the separation get s a little bit dicey 

             4  only because some work is done for some things and not.  

             5  It's hard to break it out -- 

             6                 THE COURT:  Sure.

             7                 MR. SULKIN:  -- clea nly.

             8                 THE COURT:  But what  I'm really trying to 

             9  parse out of this is those specific  hours that haven't been 

            10  reviewed by some prior judicial off icer or haven't been 

            11  represented as reasonable by the De Courseys.

            12                 MR. SULKIN:  I under stand that and there are 

            13  no hours -- if I understand your qu estion, there are no 

            14  hours that the DeCourseys have take n issue with because 

            15  they haven't responded.

            16                 THE COURT:  That's s lightly different.

            17                 MR. SULKIN:  I'm not  trying to be craft.  In 

            18  fact, let me try again to understan d.

            19                 THE COURT:  No, my q uestion is, that were 

            20  specifically represented by the DeC ourseys as being 

            21  reasonable.

            22                 MR. SULKIN:  I'm sur e it's me.  I'm not --

            23                 THE COURT:  Such as in a application for 

            24  award of fees to the court, that wa sn't granted.

            25                 MR. SULKIN:  There a re no hours -- if I may 
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             1  and I think I understand your quest ion.  It's Friday at 

             2  3:00. It's me and not you.  There a re no hours that a court 

             3  has found to be unreasonable, that is correct.

             4                 THE COURT:  Yes.

             5                 MR. SULKIN:  No cour t has ever found -- 

             6  other than the rate that Mr. McBrid e in the Court of 

             7  Appeals which is $4712.  That's the  only thing any court 

             8  has ever found to be reasonable.  B ut even as to those 

             9  hours the commissioner in the appel late court found those 

            10  to be appropriate.

            11                 THE COURT:  Right, a nd here's what I'm 

            12  trying to get at.  Is there anythin g in the Degginger 

            13  declaration that wasn't submitted t o some court?

            14                 MR. SULKIN:  I have not compared --

            15                 THE COURT:  Okay.

            16                 MR. SULKIN:  -- Degg inger's declaration -- 

            17                 THE COURT:  What I'm  trying to get at is are 

            18  you -- what hours you're asking me to look at to make a 

            19  reasonableness determination.

            20                 MR. SULKIN:  I belie ve it would be the hours 

            21  Judge Fox didn't approve, but I don 't think Judge Fox was 

            22  able to -- if you know what I mean.   And I know it puts you 

            23  in a tough spot and I'm trying to b e fair to you.

            24                 THE COURT:  No, that 's fine.  Because

            25  here's -- and you described that as  perhaps being a 
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             1  substantial amount of money, betwee n a hundred thousand and 

             2  $200,000.

             3                 MR. SULKIN:  It may be.  I'd have to go 

             4  back.

             5                 THE COURT:  So tell me how I can approach 

             6  this without going over all of the work that another trial 

             7  court and the Court of Appeals and the Supreme Court has 

             8  done.  I suppose the Supreme Court that work might be easy 

             9  to parse out.

            10                 MR. SULKIN:  Yeah.

            11                 THE COURT:  But how am I to approach that 

            12  without going over what's already b een gone over?

            13                 MR. SULKIN:  You may  -- if you think you 

            14  have to do that you may have to, Yo ur Honor.

            15                 THE COURT:  Okay.

            16                 MR. SULKIN:  And tha t may not be the answer 

            17  you want to hear from me.

            18                 THE COURT:  No.

            19                 MR. SULKIN:  But wha t you do have from me is 

            20  there's no one claiming -- the reas on you don't have to, I 

            21  mean, is this.  One, if you feel yo u have to, you have to 

            22  in a sense go over it.  And I can't  easily segregate out to 

            23  you and say every hour after Novemb er second of X years you 

            24  have you to look at it.  I can't ma ke it that easy for you.  

            25  What I can say is no one -- they do n't complain about the 
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             1  reasonableness of the fees because they're arguing fraud 

             2  and all these other things.  And th ey don't complain -- 

             3  they don't complain about the numbe r of hours because they 

             4  put in nothing else.  Their defense s are all around these 

             5  sort of ideas of fraud which we kno w the Court of Appeals 

             6  has addressed because -- and Judge Fox addressed.

             7                 THE COURT:  Right.  Now, with respect to the 

             8  fees that you're asking or the awar d that you're seeking 

             9  here, are you asking as part of thi s motion an award of 

            10  attorney's fees for your services r epresenting Lane Powell?

            11                 MR. SULKIN:  No.

            12                 THE COURT:  Okay. 

            13                 MR. SULKIN:  No.

            14                 THE COURT:  Okay.

            15                 MR. SULKIN:  I mean,  we've made a motion to 

            16  you which you granted on sanctions,  but the fees we're 

            17  asking here are solely the fees tha t are in the lien

            18  plus -- what's in the lien plus int erest.  I mean, it's 

            19  just the underlying case.  It's got  nothing to do with me, 

            20  we're not asking for my fees as par t of this motion.

            21                 THE COURT:  Right, o kay.

            22                 MR. SULKIN:  Any oth er questions?

            23                 THE COURT:  I think I covered it.

            24                 MR. SULKIN:  Thank y ou, Your Honor.

            25                 THE COURT:  Final wo rd?

Page 49 of  72



November 16, 2012  Summary Judgment Hearing

                                                                        50

             1                 MR. DeCOURSEY:  Yes,  please.  I wish I could 

             2  see Exhibit K.  

             3                 Mr. Sulkin, do you h ave a copy of Exhibit K 

             4  that I can see?

             5                 THE COURT:  Well, I' ll tell you what.  I'm 

             6  not going to go there.  I can give you mine.

             7                 MR. DeCOURSEY:  Okay .

             8                 THE COURT:  I'll pul l it out here.

             9                 MR. SULKIN:  Your Ho nor, if I may correct 

            10  one statement?

            11                 THE COURT:  Yes.

            12                 MR. SULKIN:  Ms. Hee ly (phonetic) believes 

            13  that -- and I'd want to double chec k this but to just give 

            14  you a since of scope; that the numb er we're talking about, 

            15  that 71,225 which is our fees beyon d that which Judge Fox 

            16  found to be addressed.

            17                 THE COURT:  Right, b ut those would be fees 

            18  that were related to Windermere.

            19                 MR. SULKIN:  Absolut ely.  They're all 

            20  underlying cases.

            21                 MR. DeCOURSEY:  This  letter in Exhibit K -- 

            22                 THE COURT:  Give tha t one back.  That has 

            23  holes punched in it.

            24                 MR. DeCOURSEY:  The letter in Exhibit K was 

            25  written by Lane Powell and addresse d to us.  It was not 
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             1  from us to Lane Powell.  They sent us the letter, we signed 

             2  ours.  It was unsigned when he sent  it to us.  We signed it 

             3  and we sent it to them and asked th em to send a ratified 

             4  ratified copy to us.  They never di d.

             5                 THE COURT:  Then -- 

             6                 MR. DeCOURSEY:  But you see that it's -- 

             7  the addressee line is Carol and Mar k DeCoursey, and the 

             8  signature line is Brent Nourse of L ane Powell PC.  They 

             9  wrote this agreement.

            10                 THE COURT:  And you agreed in this 

            11  apparently that Lane Powell's fees were appropriate.

            12                 MR. DeCOURSEY:  That  is an illegal term 

            13  according to the RPC.  Mr. Sulkin h as not addressed that, 

            14  but that is illegal under RPC I thi nk it's 1.8.  It says 

            15  that "a lawyer shall not make an ag reement prospectively 

            16  limiting the lawyer's liability to a client," and that's 

            17  the way they've used it over and ov er again in the written 

            18  pleading for this and in his oral a rgument.

            19                 THE COURT:  Okay, go t it. 

            20                 MR. DeCOURSEY:  So u nder the RPC that 

            21  agreement is void under that case - - I'm sorry, Simburg 

            22  Ketter Sheppard & Purdy.  It's not a valid agreement.

            23                 THE COURT:  Okay, go  ahead.

            24                 MR. DeCOURSEY:  I'm sorry.  I thought you 

            25  were about to ask me a question.
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             1                 THE COURT:  No, no, no.

             2                 MR. DeCOURSEY:  Okay .  Also the court 

             3  papers provide a very clear picture  of what fees they 

             4  submitted to the court and which th ey did not.  If you go 

             5  into the motion for fees, you see t hat the invoices are 

             6  blacked out in line after line afte r line, things they 

             7  would -- they did not submit to the  court for fees.  Things 

             8  that Judge Fox did not see, things that no court saw.  And 

             9  by those items you can tell what wa s submitted to the 

            10  courts and what was not.

            11                 Also, all the fees - - as I said earlier, all 

            12  the fees notice of November and Dec ember, January and 

            13  February of 2008 and 2009, they did n't submit any of those 

            14  fees either, and you can see where the invoices -- the fee 

            15  motion to the judge cut off.  And y ou can see from 

            16  Degginger's declaration where they just kept ona' going and 

            17  kept ona' billing us -- 

            18                 THE COURT:  Okay.

            19                 MR. DeCOURSEY:  -- i n spite of the fact of 

            20  having written that fee motion late  in February.  

            21                 They also after the Court decided that they 

            22  were going to pay 12 percent intere st, that Windermere was 

            23  going to pay 12 percent interest, L ane Powell made a 

            24  private agreement without consultin g us that Windermere 

            25  would pay 3.49 interest, post-judgm ent interest.
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             1                 THE COURT:  Now you' re getting back into 

             2  arguments you've already made.

             3                 MR. DeCOURSEY:  I di dn't mention that 

             4  earlier.

             5                 THE COURT:  I think you did, but.

             6                 MR. DeCOURSEY:  Okay .

             7                 THE COURT:  But in a ny event, you got it 

             8  now.

             9                 MR. DeCOURSEY:  Okay .

            10                 THE COURT:  One way or the other.

            11                 But what I want to s ay is that I've given 

            12  you a little extra latitude in term s of a further reply 

            13  here, but it's not opening the door  to going through all of 

            14  your arguments.

            15                 MR. DeCOURSEY:  Okay .

            16                 THE COURT:  Yeah.

            17                 MR. DeCOURSEY:  Righ t.

            18                 THE COURT:  Yeah.

            19                 MR. DeCOURSEY:  Also  -- oh, the Court of 

            20  Appeals also trimmed off hours.  Mr . Sulkin says again and 

            21  again that the only court that did it was the Supreme Court 

            22  or the Court of Appeals.  They both  trimmed hours from the 

            23  claims that Lane Powell submitted.  They trimmed -- they -- 

            24  neither one of them found the claim s to be reasonable.

            25                 There was also the f act that Lane Powell 

Page 53 of  72



November 16, 2012  Summary Judgment Hearing

                                                                        54

             1  originally estimated the case at a hundred thousand dollars 

             2  and then billed us for $480,000 for  the trial.  That's just 

             3  for the trial phase.  That was part  of the verbal contract, 

             4  but we haven't argued that.  

             5                 The reason we haven' t argued about 

             6  reasonableness of fees is because L ane Powell did not move 

             7  this court for summary judgment on quantum meruit.  They 

             8  moved the court for summary judgmen t only on breach of 

             9  contract.  So it's the contract ter ms that we are arguing, 

            10  and that's why we said it was irrel evant.  But to argue 

            11  reasonableness is to ask the court to determine whether or 

            12  not they're reasonable.  And that I  would think would be 

            13  more of a fact finding thing, but t hat's just my opinion.

            14                 THE COURT:  Got it, thank you.

            15                 MR. DeCOURSEY:  Than k you.

            16                 THE COURT:  You can keep that now.

            17                 MR. DeCOURSEY:  Than k you for your help, 

            18  sir.

            19                 MRS. DeCOURSEY:  May  I offer you these 

            20  documents?  These are the documents  that prove Lane Powell 

            21  tells lies about basic -- 

            22                 THE COURT:  No.

            23                 MRS. DeCOURSEY:  The y have impeached their 

            24  credibility of themselves as witnes ses.

            25                 THE COURT:  No.
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             1                 MRS. DeCOURSEY:  Lan e Powell lies.

             2                 THE COURT:  Ms. DeCo ursey, the documents 

             3  upon which this motion has to be de cided have already been 

             4  presented.

             5                 MRS. DeCOURSEY:  But  we've presented this to 

             6  you before, sir, many many times.  Does it matter when 

             7  lawyers lie to judges or should tha t be swept under the 

             8  table?  I don't understand.  Please  explain.

             9                 THE COURT:  We have a process by which a 

            10  person who wants summary judgment s ays what they want in 

            11  summary judgment and provides the d ocuments that they think 

            12  necessary, the affidavits that are necessary to support 

            13  that.  The responding parties get t o put in their -- make 

            14  their arguments and put in their do cuments that they think 

            15  support their view.  Then we have a  reply which isn't 

            16  supposed to put in new matters but it's argument about the 

            17  case.  

            18                 And that closes the record for the purposes 

            19  of the summary judgment.  That's wh at a judge has to decide 

            20  this case on, this summary judgment .  Each side has had to 

            21  respond -- the opportunity and the responsibility to put in 

            22  those documents that they think are  appropriate for that.  

            23  So -- and we have a strict rule, pr etty strict rule on 

            24  adding something new after everyone 's gone through that 

            25  process.
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             1                 MRS. DeCOURSEY:  So what about the 

             2  credibility of the witness, sir?  T hey have just said lies. 

             3  I always -- 

             4                 THE COURT:  This is -- 

             5                 MRS. DeCOURSEY:  May be I was brought up 

             6  funny.  I was always told to tell t he truth and certainly 

             7  tell the truth in court.

             8                 THE COURT:  This is -- 

             9                 MRS. DeCOURSEY:  I c an't understand why 

            10  people tell lies like that.

            11                 THE COURT:  Well, th is is based upon 

            12  material facts that are really not disputed, and that's 

            13  what their burden is to show materi al facts that are not 

            14  disputed.  Now, you may disagree ab out a lot of things, but 

            15  it's a question of whether there's a disagreement about -- 

            16  and evidence, there's further disag reement about material 

            17  facts, facts that are important to the decision that was 

            18  made.  

            19                 And I'm going to fin d that in terms of the 

            20  obligation for attorney's fees to L ane Powell that they've 

            21  met that burden.  So they have judg ment for the attorney's 

            22  fees that are owed to Lane Powell.  And those would include 

            23  all attorney's fees that have been approved by courts that 

            24  haven't been paid.  

            25                 And I just want you to understand that when 
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             1  you go to a court and ask a court t o approve attorney's 

             2  fees; you say here are my attorney' s fees and these are 

             3  reasonable and hourly.  I want you,  court, to have somebody 

             4  else pay those, and then the court says okay, you know, 

             5  whatever fees are reasonable, the c ourt says yes.  Okay, I 

             6  agree these are reasonable.  Somebo dy else should pay those 

             7  because of the nature of the case.  And then that someone 

             8  else comes back and does pay them a nd so you benefit from 

             9  that.  And you can't then go back a nd say those fees were 

            10  not reasonable.  It just wouldn't b e fair for you now to 

            11  come back and say no, those weren't  reasonable fees even 

            12  though I said they were before and I got paid for them in 

            13  fact.

            14                 MRS. DeCOURSEY:  Alt hough it's Lane Powell 

            15  saying that, not us.

            16                 THE COURT:  So those  fees that have been 

            17  approved by the courts, those will be part of the summary 

            18  judgment here.  Those fees that may  not have ended up in a 

            19  court order but they were part of a  petition to a court and 

            20  are clearly included here because t hose were court -- those 

            21  were submitted on your behalf and f or you.  

            22                 And the only questio n I have now are there 

            23  any additional fees and there are a dditional fees, but 

            24  those fees were put forward here, a nd a request was made 

            25  for those fees so there was no obje ction to those fees.  I 
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             1  think I can find without getting in to any Windermere 

             2  evaluation that the courts have app roved those hourly 

             3  rates.  That representation has bee n made, there's been no 

             4  indication that that isn't so.  It' s in the record.  So the 

             5  hourly rates are all determined to be reasonable.  

             6                 The only question is  on the number of hours 

             7  and whether the number of hours are  reasonable.  Now, there 

             8  hasn't been a dispute from you on t hat.  I may just go back 

             9  and check a little law on that to e nsure that if the fact 

            10  that you did not dispute those in t his hearing closes the 

            11  book on that, then we'll close the book on that.

            12                 If it says that I ha ve to go back and make 

            13  an independent review of those, if that's what the law is, 

            14  then that's another question and th at's something that I am 

            15  concerned would bring me into an ev aluation of the 

            16  Windermere litigation and put me in  a position of an 

            17  appearance that I shouldn't be doin g that because of my 

            18  wife's occupation as an independent  agent working out of an 

            19  Windermere office, going back and e valuating in a sense, 

            20  Windermere.  And I may -- if it com es to that I will look 

            21  at the law and I did find out wheth er I can rely on the 

            22  absence of an objection, but if it comes to that I may 

            23  defer that to another judge.

            24                 MR. SULKIN:  Just fo r the review of the -- 

            25                 THE COURT:  Yes.  An d I'd do that before.  
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             1  I don't think -- I don't have any p rejudice or bias in 

             2  favor of Windermere.  It's a big or ganization.  It's like a 

             3  lot of others.  It didn't have any connection to my family 

             4  or otherwise with the transactions that caused your 

             5  lawsuit. 

             6                 I'm not defensive fo r Windermere.  I have no 

             7  financial stake in Windermere, my w ife doesn't.  She earns 

             8  commission from her sales of houses  she's involved with and 

             9  pays a portion of that to Windermer e; the Windermere 

            10  franchise that she works from which  was not the Windermere 

            11  franchise involved here.  

            12                 But in any event, I don't think I have a 

            13  conflict on that but I respect your  concern.  And so I 

            14  think that if it comes down to my e valuating the litigation 

            15  that involved Windermere directly a nd might involve then 

            16  some evaluation of Windermere's con duct, then I think I 

            17  would at that point recuse and leav e that issue to another 

            18  judge, but I don't know if we have to be there or not.  I 

            19  don't know that we don't have it al ready covered.

            20                 MR. SULKIN:  Can I m ake a quick -- 

            21                 THE COURT:  Yes.

            22                 MR. SULKIN:  Your Ho nor, we'll obviously 

            23  respect your decision and whether y ou feel comfortable with 

            24  Windermere, but the hours you'll be  looking at would be 

            25  hours that we're not asking Winderm ere to pay.  I think 
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             1  your point would be well taken even  stronger if we'd then 

             2  ask Windermere to pay the money but  we're not.  And I'll 

             3  leave that to you.

             4                 THE COURT:  Yes.  We ll, that's a nice 

             5  distinction.  So what I'm going to ask you do -- so I will 

             6  grant the motion for all aspects on  this case with that 

             7  reservation in terms of that amount , and I am going to ask 

             8  you to give me a submission on that .  You need to go back 

             9  and look at this again, and maybe y ou can make it clear 

            10  that it wasn't involved in the Wind ermere -- or that 

            11  Windermere wasn't asked to pay that .  But first, the legal 

            12  analysis as to whether -- because t here having been no 

            13  objections for those in this, wheth er that is sufficient.

            14                 MR. SULKIN:  Just so  I understand, 

            15  Your Honor.

            16                 THE COURT:  Just a m inute.

            17                 MR. SULKIN:  I'm hap py to have 

            18  Mr. DeCoursey go first.

            19                 THE COURT:  No, no.  I want to -- 

            20                 MR. SULKIN:  I just want to be clear what 

            21  you expect from us. 

            22                 THE COURT:  Okay.

            23                 MR. SULKIN:  Do you want us -- do you

            24  want -- do you want anything entere d formally today?  

            25                 THE COURT:  Well, yo u may if you can 
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             1  scratch it out that way.

             2                 MR. SULKIN:  Okay.

             3                 THE COURT:  But if t here is an issue that a 

             4  judge is required to review the rea sonableness of some 

             5  hours, then obviously you'd have to  do that.

             6                 MR. SULKIN:  Right.

             7                 THE COURT:  I'm not sure that we have to do 

             8  that.

             9                 MR. SULKIN:  And wou ld you like us to make a 

            10  submission on that?

            11                 THE COURT:  Yes.

            12                 MR. SULKIN:  Okay.  And when would you like 

            13  that submission by, Your Honor?

            14                 THE COURT:  Well, I' m going to be gone all 

            15  next week, so you have all next wee k.  Work on Thanksgiving 

            16  to do it.

            17                 MR. SULKIN:  And -- 

            18                 THE COURT:  Just a m oment, counsel.

            19                 MR. SULKIN:  And may be what I'll do as far 

            20  as this submission is concerned is go back to the office 

            21  and -- 

            22                 THE COURT:  And the second part of it, you 

            23  know, the law on that.  It should b e not more than three 

            24  pages.  Maybe two pages.

            25                 MR. SULKIN:  Right, right, that's all it 
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             1  will be.

             2                 THE COURT:  But if y ou can then on that 

             3  identify with more clarity the hour s that need to be 

             4  reviewed, I think that's going to b e helpful.

             5                 MR. SULKIN:  Underst ood, Your Honor.

             6                 THE COURT:  Yes, and  in the Degginger 

             7  declaration, if there's some way of  setting off those hours 

             8  that are the ones that if a judge n eeds to review that 

             9  these are the hours, that would be really helpful.

            10                 MR. SULKIN:  Okay.  And my last question I 

            11  have -- 

            12                 THE COURT:  Yes.

            13                 MR. SULKIN:  -- I th ink is do you want to 

            14  rule today or later on the question  of McBride, that $4700 

            15  issue?

            16                 THE COURT:  In the M cBride $4700 issue I 

            17  think it was a matter of $40 an hou r?  

            18                 MR. SULKIN:  Correct .  He was charging 440 

            19  and the court said 400.

            20                 THE COURT:  400.  An d the court ruled on 

            21  that, said 400.

            22                 MR. SULKIN:  Well, a ctually the court 

            23  commissioner did, not the full cour t.

            24                 THE COURT:  Right.

            25                 MR. SULKIN:  The cou rt commissioner did so 
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             1  there's not a chance to -- 

             2                 THE COURT:  Whoever is the final arbiter on 

             3  that though.

             4                 MR. SULKIN:  Yes, th at was the final -- the 

             5  last decision -- 

             6                 THE COURT:  Okay.

             7                 MR. SULKIN:  -- was the commissioner.

             8                 THE COURT:  And so y ou want the $40.  

             9  You're asking for $40 per hour, the  $4700.  Now, if that 

            10  commissioner, that judicial officer  reviewed that and said 

            11  this is reasonable and this isn't, then what's your basis 

            12  for it?  It could be reasonable for  the client but not 

            13  reasonable to cost shift?

            14                 MR. SULKIN:  Correct , Your Honor, and that 

            15  commissioner is -- with due respect  of the commissioner, 

            16  it's not a full judicial proceeding  with full judicial -- 

            17                 THE COURT:  Okay.  

            18                 MR. SULKIN:  Correct .

            19                 THE COURT:  Okay, so  to the extent that you 

            20  can mark out that what you're reall y asking me to do then 

            21  is to go back and look at that hour ly rate.  Did they 

            22  approve the full time?

            23                 MR. SULKIN:  Yes.

            24                 THE COURT:  So it's just the hourly rate.

            25                 MR. SULKIN:  Just th e hourly rate, whether 
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             1  you think 400 or it should be 440.

             2                 THE COURT:  Okay.  S o if you're asking me to 

             3  make a determination then I'd have to have a basis for it.

             4                 MR. SULKIN:  Correct .

             5                 THE COURT:  So you n eed to give me whatever 

             6  that affidavit is that sets the rea sonableness of that.

             7                 MR. SULKIN:  Thank y ou, Your Honor.

             8                 THE COURT:  Now, you  folks understand that 

             9  then there will be an order present ed but there's going to 

            10  be this -- a brief on whether there  are some hours that 

            11  were -- that they're seeking -- you  know, Lane Powell is 

            12  seeking to recover on here that I n eed to review for 

            13  reasonableness, the reasonableness of the number of hours, 

            14  and that I may not have to and may not require that.  And 

            15  if it doesn't require that then tho se will be granted.  If 

            16  it does require that, then I think that -- if it does 

            17  require that I think then that I wo uld -- I'll pass that 

            18  off to a different judge because th en that gets us into 

            19  looking at Windermere.

            20                 MRS. DeCOURSEY:  Jus t a quick question, 

            21  Your Honor.

            22                 THE COURT:  Sure.

            23                 MRS. DeCOURSEY:  On the subject of 

            24  reasonableness -- 

            25                 THE COURT:  Yes.
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             1                 MRS. DeCOURSEY:  -- the problem was alluded 

             2  to.  Someone said here that the pro blem was Windermere, 

             3  they kept on using aggressive litig ation.

             4                 THE COURT:  Right.

             5                 MRS. DeCOURSEY:  Now  here's the issue.  We 

             6  asked Lane Powell to ask for CR 11 sanctions.  They 

             7  absolutely would not do it.  Lane P owell mined this case 

             8  for legal fees.  It was a CPA case and they used it 

             9  shamelessly to mine legal fees.  On e hundred thousand 

            10  dollar estimate, $480,000 at end of  trial.  It's not 

            11  reasonable.  It a racket, it's a ra cket.

            12                 THE COURT:  Okay.  N ow, I would entertain 

            13  signing an order that goes as far a s we've gone today, so 

            14  you can note for presentation proba bly is the best way.  If 

            15  you don't have one there, they're s cratching one out.

            16                 MR. SULKIN:  Here's what I've done, 

            17  Your Honor, and I'm happy to do it any obviously way you 

            18  want.  

            19                 THE COURT:  Okay.

            20                 MR. SULKIN:  I have an order that grants us 

            21  the full amount, and then I put an asterisk saying 

            22  "however, parties shall submit brie fs," and going on trying 

            23  to get what you said and understand ing this order is not 

            24  final.  Or we can just wait and I t hink we have a record, a 

            25  pretty good record here.  Whatever you're comfortable 
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             1  doing, Your Honor.

             2                 THE COURT:  Well, th e only part that is -- 

             3  concerns me is if we end up saying the order isn't final 

             4  then -- 

             5                 MR. SULKIN:  The ord er on the liability is 

             6  final except for the hours not cove red.

             7                 THE COURT:  Right.  Yeah, okay.  I think we 

             8  can enter an order of liability and  I think that probably 

             9  would be good for us to enter as mu ch as we can here now. 

            10                 Sir?

            11                 MR. DeCOURSEY:  I do n't understand why the 

            12  Court keeps saying there's no objec tion to the fees.  We 

            13  have presented evidence of fraud.  We have in our written 

            14  presentation we presented that they  mined the case and 

            15  refused to get CR 11 sanctions and to limit Windermere's 

            16  flagrant galaxies of arguments.  Wh y does the Court say 

            17  there has been no objection to the fees?  We objected at 

            18  the time in letter after letter, an d we've presented those 

            19  letters as quite a packet in our su bmission to the Court on 

            20  summary judgment. 

            21                 THE COURT:  Perhaps -- 

            22                 MR. DeCOURSEY:  Why are these things being 

            23  ignored?

            24                 THE COURT:  Perhaps I spoke a little broadly 

            25  on that, and I in the most general -- 
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             1                 MR. DeCOURSEY:  Mr. Sulkin has also said the 

             2  same thing over and over again.

             3                 THE COURT:  Now, you  have to give me an  

             4  opportunity to answer you now, okay ?

             5                 Perhaps I was a litt le broad on that, but 

             6  what I meant was in terms of the ho urly rate -- hours, the 

             7  reasonableness of the hours that we 've been talking about 

             8  with Mr. Sulkin that was unclear as  to whether I have to 

             9  review those for reasonableness or not.  Those are the 

            10  hours I'm talking about and just th ose.  

            11                 And in the brief -- and in the briefing in 

            12  this motion, in this motion, the mo tion was made, your 

            13  response, there was no -- 

            14                 MR. DeCOURSEY:  Yes,  there was.  There was.

            15                 THE COURT:  -- objec tion on your part to the 

            16  reasonableness of those hours.

            17                 MR. DeCOURSEY:  Yes,  we did.

            18                 THE COURT:  Okay.

            19                 MR. DeCOURSEY:  We s howed you that there was 

            20  fraudulent billing.

            21                 THE COURT:  Okay.  N ow, what's going to 

            22  happen -- 

            23                 MR. DeCOURSEY:  That 's not -- I don't 

            24  understand why that's not an object ion.  We just -- 

            25                 THE COURT:  Okay.
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             1                 MR. DeCOURSEY:  -- a ddressed that one point.

             2                 THE COURT:  Okay.  N ow -- okay, just let me 

             3  try to respond to that.  There's go ing to be -- we're going 

             4  to enter a partial order here, and then Mr. Sulkin or his 

             5  partners will give me a brief with respect to whether I 

             6  need to look at those for reasonabl eness or not, and you'll 

             7  have an opportunity to respond to t hat.  You'll get a copy.  

             8  You know how this goes; you'll get a copy produced and then 

             9  you'll get an opportunity to send y our own brief back and 

            10  then you can lay out whatever you t hink is wrong with their 

            11  motion, and then they'll reply.  

            12                 I would anticipate t hat this would be a 

            13  motion without oral argument, but i f either party requests 

            14  oral argument on it, then you'll ge t it.  It just makes it 

            15  maybe a little more difficult to sc hedule.

            16                 MR. SULKIN:  May I r ead what I wrote just -- 

            17                 THE COURT:  Sure.

            18                 MR. SULKIN:  -- to m ake sure it fairly 

            19  captures what you said.  You said y ou have an order here 

            20  which uses the number of 422,675 wh ich is plus the 

            21  interest.  I put an asterisk by eve ry place where that is 

            22  in the order.  And I wrote, "Howeve r, the parties shall 

            23  submit briefs no longer than three or four pages on whether 

            24  this court must review the number o f hours worked by Lane 

            25  Powell that were previously not rev iewed by other courts to 
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             1  determine reasonableness.  As to su ch hours, no summary 

             2  judgment shall be entered.  Additio nally, briefing on 

             3  whether Mr. McBride's rate in the a ppellate process may be 

             4  challenged is due by November 30, 2 012."

             5                 THE COURT:  Okay.  I s that enough time? 

             6                 MR. SULKIN:  That wo uld be okay for us.

             7                 THE COURT:  Okay.  I 'm mindful what next 

             8  week is.

             9                 MR. SULKIN:  Okay.

            10                 THE COURT:  And, you  know, three or four --  

            11  because we doubled up on the issues  there, you know, I 

            12  think five pages -- five legitimate  pages.  Sometimes when 

            13  we get down to this point we say fi ve pages, no footnotes.

            14                 MR. SULKIN:  I'll ch ange it to five pages, 

            15  no footnotes.

            16                 THE COURT:  No, you don't have to put the no 

            17  footnotes, counsel.

            18                 MR. SULKIN:  All rig ht, we're just going to 

            19  change.

            20                 MRS. DeCOURSEY:  I'm  not going to sign 

            21  anything.

            22                 MR. SULKIN:  Okay.  They're not -- they 

            23  won't sign this but I'm going to ch ange this to -- 

            24                 THE COURT:  Okay.  M r. and Mrs. DeCoursey, I 

            25  understand that you've declined to sign on this.
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             1                 MRS. DeCOURSEY:  We both have, sir.

             2                 THE COURT:  Okay.

             3                 MRS. DeCOURSEY:  I'm  sorry, I didn't speak 

             4  to my husband but I heard him say h e's not going to sign 

             5  it.

             6                 THE COURT:  Okay.  M r. DeCoursey?

             7                 MR. DeCOURSEY:  Well , I don't even 

             8  understand what it is you want me t o sign.  That it's 

             9  reasonable?  

            10                 THE COURT:  No.

            11                 MR. DeCOURSEY:  Sign  that we don't object?  

            12  What?

            13                 THE COURT:  No, this  order that -- the 

            14  summary judgment motion is granted and that we are going to 

            15  go to the extent requested except t hat we're going to go 

            16  look back at certain hours to see i f I have to determine 

            17  whether they're reasonable or not.  If I don't have to go 

            18  through a reasonableness determinat ion on those hours, then 

            19  this would be the final order.  If I do have to go through 

            20  a reasonableness determination on t hose hours, then it will 

            21  be my -- I'm thinking very seriousl y about assigning that 

            22  to a different judge.

            23                 MR. DeCOURSEY:  We u nderstand that part of 

            24  it.  What is that Mr. Sulkin thinks  we ought to sign?

            25                 THE COURT:  Well, it 's an order that says 
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             1  that.

             2                 MRS. DeCOURSEY:  We would have to study it 

             3  scrupulously in light of the phenom enal lies these people 

             4  tell you.

             5                 THE COURT:  Okay.  Y ou're going to get a 

             6  copy of it today.  We'll make copie s for both sides in this 

             7  case.  Then we'll have that.

             8                 Okay, thank you.  An ything further?

             9                 MR. SULKIN:  No, You r Honor.

            10                 THE COURT:  Okay, th ank you very much.

            11

            12

            13                   (Proceedings concl uded.)

            14

            15

            16

            17

            18

            19

            20

            21

            22

            23

            24

            25
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